
N O T I C E
OF

MEETING
MAIDENHEAD DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL

will meet on

WEDNESDAY, 6TH JUNE, 2018
at

7.00 pm
in the

COUNCIL CHAMBER - TOWN HALL, 

TO: MEMBERS OF THE MAIDENHEAD DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL

COUNCILLOR DEREK WILSON (CHAIRMAN)
COUNCILLOR LEO WALTERS (VICE-CHAIRMAN)
COUNILLORS CLIVE BULLOCK, MAUREEN HUNT, RICHARD KELLAWAY, 
PHILIP LOVE, DEREK SHARP, ADAM SMITH AND CLAIRE STRETTON 

SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS
COUNCILLORS GERRY CLARK, CARWYN COX, JUDITH DIMENT, GEOFF HILL, 
MOHAMMED ILYAS, MARION MILLS, MJ SAUNDERS, HARI SHARMA AND 
LISA TARGOWSKA

Karen Shepherd – Service Lead
Democratic Services

Issued: Tuesday, 29 May 2018

Members of the Press and Public are welcome to attend Part I of this meeting.

The agenda is available on the Council’s web site at www.rbwm.gov.uk – if you are viewing this on 
the website and there are appendices you are unable to access, please contact the

Panel Administrator Shilpa Manek 01628 796310, or democratic.services@rbwm.gov.uk

Fire Alarm - In the event of the fire alarm sounding or other emergency, please leave the building quickly and calmly by 
the nearest exit.  Do not stop to collect personal belongings and do not use the lifts.  Do not re-enter the building until told 
to do so by a member of staff.

Recording of Meetings –In line with the council’s commitment to transparency the meeting will be audio recorded, and 
filmed and broadcast through the online application Periscope. The footage can be found through the council’s main 
Twitter feed @RBWM or via the Periscope website. The audio recording will also be made available on the RBWM 
website, after the meeting. 

Filming, recording and photography of public Council meetings  may be undertaken by any person attending the meeting. 
By entering the meeting room you are acknowledging that you may be audio or video recorded and that this recording will 
be in the public domain. If you have any questions regarding the council’s policy, please speak to the Democratic 
Services or Legal representative at the meeting.

Public Document Pack

http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/
mailto:democratic.services@rbwm.gov.uk


AGENDA

PART 1
ITEM SUBJECT WARD PAGE 

NO

1.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
To receive any apologies for absence.

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
To receive any declarations of interest.

3 – 4

3.  MINUTES 
To confirm the part I minutes of the meeting of 9 May 2018.

5 – 8

4.  PLANNING APPLICATIONS (DECISION) 
To consider the Head of Planning’s report on planning 
applications received.

Full details on all planning applications (including 
application forms, site plans, objections received, 
correspondence etc.) can be found by accessing the
Planning Applications Public Access Module by selecting 
the following link.

http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web/dc_public_apps.htm

9 – 46

5.  ESSENTIAL MONITORING REPORTS (MONITORING) 
To consider the Appeals Decision Report and Planning Appeals 
Received.

47 – 54



LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985

In accordance with the requirements of the Local Government (Access to
Information) Act 1985, each item on this report includes a list of Background Papers
that have been relied on to a material extent in the formulation of the report and
recommendation.

The list of Background Papers will normally include relevant previous planning
decisions, replies to formal consultations and relevant letter of representation
received from local societies, and members of the public. For ease of reference, the
total number of letters received from members of the public will normally be listed as
a single Background Paper, although a distinction will be made where contrary
views are expressed. Any replies to consultations that are not received by the time
the report goes to print will be recorded as “Comments Awaited”.

The list will not include published documents such as the Town and Country
Planning Acts and associated legislation, Department of the Environment Circulars,
the Berkshire Structure Plan, Statutory Local Plans or other forms of Supplementary
Planning Guidance, as the instructions, advice and policies contained within these
documents are common to the determination of all planning applications. Any
reference to any of these documents will be made as necessary under the heading
“Remarks”.

STATEMENT OF THE HUMAN RIGHTS ACT 1998

The Human Rights Act 1998 was brought into force in this country on 2nd October
2000, and it will now, subject to certain exceptions, be directly unlawful for a public
authority to act in a way which is incompatible with a Convention right. In particular,
Article 8 (respect for private and family life) and Article 1 of Protocol 1 (peaceful
enjoyment of property) apply to planning decisions. When a planning decision is to
be made however, there is further provision that a public authority must take into
account the public interest. In the vast majority of cases existing planning law has for
many years demanded a balancing exercise between private rights and public
interest, and therefore much of this authority’s decision making will continue to take
into account this balance.

The Human Rights Act will not be referred to in the Officer’s report for individual
applications beyond this general statement, unless there are exceptional
circumstances which demand more careful and sensitive consideration of Human
Rights issues

3

Agenda Item 2



 
MEMBERS’ GUIDE TO DECLARING INTERESTS IN MEETINGS  

 
Disclosure at Meetings 
 
If a Member has not disclosed an interest in their Register of Interests, they must make the declaration of 
interest at the beginning of the meeting, or as soon as they are aware that they have a DPI or Prejudicial 
Interest. If a Member has already disclosed the interest in their Register of Interests they are still required to 
disclose this in the meeting if it relates to the matter being discussed.   
 
A member with a DPI or Prejudicial Interest may make representations at the start of the item but must not 
take part in the discussion or vote at a meeting. The speaking time allocated for Members to make 
representations is at the discretion of the Chairman of the meeting.  In order to avoid any accusations of taking 
part in the discussion or vote, after speaking, Members should move away from the panel table to a public area 
or, if they wish, leave the room.  If the interest declared has not been entered on to a Members’ Register of 
Interests, they must notify the Monitoring Officer in writing within the next 28 days following the meeting.  

 
Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs) (relating to the Member or their partner) include: 
 

 Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain. 

 Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit made in respect of any expenses occurred in 
carrying out member duties or election expenses. 

 Any contract under which goods and services are to be provided/works to be executed which has not been 
fully discharged. 

 Any beneficial interest in land within the area of the relevant authority. 

 Any licence to occupy land in the area of the relevant authority for a month or longer. 

 Any tenancy where the landlord is the relevant authority, and the tenant is a body in which the relevant 
person has a beneficial interest. 

 Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where:  
a) that body has a piece of business or land in the area of the relevant authority, and  
b) either (i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the total issued 
share capital of that body or (ii) the total nominal value of the shares of any one class belonging to the 
relevant person exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class. 

 
Any Member who is unsure if their interest falls within any of the above legal definitions should seek advice 
from the Monitoring Officer in advance of the meeting. 
 
A Member with a DPI should state in the meeting: ‘I declare a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in item x 
because xxx. As soon as we come to that item, I will leave the room/ move to the public area for the 
entire duration of the discussion and not take part in the vote.’ 
 
Or, if making representations on the item: ‘I declare a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in item x because xxx. 
As soon as we come to that item, I will make representations, then I will leave the room/ move to the 
public area for the entire duration of the discussion and not take part in the vote.’ 
 
Prejudicial Interests 
 
Any interest which a reasonable, fair minded and informed member of the public would reasonably believe is so 
significant that it harms or impairs the Member’s ability to judge the public interest in the item, i.e. a Member’s 
decision making is influenced by their interest so that they are not able to impartially consider relevant issues.   
 
A Member with a Prejudicial interest should state in the meeting: ‘I declare a Prejudicial Interest in item x 
because xxx. As soon as we come to that item, I will leave the room/ move to the public area for the 
entire duration of the discussion and not take part in the vote.’ 
 
Or, if making representations in the item: ‘I declare a Prejudicial Interest in item x because xxx. As soon as 
we come to that item, I will make representations, then I will leave the room/ move to the public area for 
the entire duration of the discussion and not take part in the vote.’ 
 
Personal interests 
 
Any other connection or association which a member of the public may reasonably think may influence a 
Member when making a decision on council matters.  
 

Members with a Personal Interest should state at the meeting: ‘I wish to declare a Personal Interest in item x 
because xxx’. As this is a Personal Interest only, I will take part in the discussion and vote on the 
matter. 4



i
Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead
Document Title: Minutes of the Maidenhead Development Management Panel – Wednesday, 9 May 2018
Author: Shilpa Manek
Creation Date: Monday, 30 April 2018

MAIDENHEAD DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL 

09.05.18

PRESENT: Councillors Derek Wilson (Chairman), Leo Walters (Vice-Chairman), 
Maureen Hunt, Richard Kellaway, Philip Love, Derek Sharp, Adam Smith and 
Claire Stretton.

Officers: Tony Franklin (Planning), Jenifer Jackson (Head of Planning), Andy Carswell 
(Democratic Services Officer) and Sean O'Connor (Senior Lawyer - Property - Shared 
Legal Solutions)

77 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
None received.

78 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest.

79 MINUTES
The Part I minutes of the meeting held on April 11th 2018 were agreed as an accurate 
record, subject to the following amendments being made:

Councillor Hunt’s declaration of interest to be amended to state that she owned a property in 
St Ives Road, not Bridge Street.

The word ‘unanimously’ to be removed from the decision notification for Item 2, with the 
following to be added: ‘Councillor Stretton did not take part in the vote as she was called out 
of the meeting’.

80 PLANNING APPLICATIONS (DECISION)
The Panel considered the Head of Planning and Development’s report on planning 
applications and received updates in relation to a number of applications, following the 
publication of the agenda.

NB: *Updates were received in relation to planning applications marked with an asterisk.

Item 1*

17/03477/FULL

Site of Former Sewage 
Works, Terrys Lane, 
Cookham, Maidenhead

Construction of a new dwelling following removal of 
redundant sewerage works and associated 
infrastructure.

Councillor Walters put forward a motion to REFUSE the 
application, as per the Officer’s recommendation. This 
was seconded by Councillor Sharp.

A named vote was carried out. Five Members 
(Councillors Love, Sharp, Stretton, Walters and Wilson) 
voted in favour of the motion, one Member (Councillor 
Smith) voted against the motion and there were two 
abstentions (Councillors Hunt and Kellaway). The 
motion was carried.

The Panel VOTED to REFUSE the application, as per 
the Officer’s recommendation.

5

Agenda Item 3



ii
Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead
Document Title: Minutes of the Maidenhead Development Management Panel – Wednesday, 9 May 2018
Author: Shilpa Manek
Creation Date: Monday, 30 April 2018

(Speakers: The Panel was addressed by Lysette 
Penston of the Cookham Society, Mark Howard of 
Cookham Parish Council and Wayne Richards, the 
applicant.)

Item 2

18/00446/FULL

Pawz and Bonez, Unit 
31 Lower Mount Farm, 
Long Lane, Cookham, 
Maidenhead SL6 9EE

Change of use of land to a canine day care facility (sui 
generis) including stationing of a temporary cabin and 
associated parking (retrospective).

Councillor Kellaway put forward a motion to APPROVE 
the application, as per the Officer’s recommendation. 
This was seconded by Councillor Love.

The Panel VOTED UNANIMOUSLY to APPROVE the 
application, as per the Officer’s recommendation, 
subject to conditions restricting business use of the site 
to 7am-7pm Monday-Friday with no weekend/Bank 
Holiday operation, and with a maximum of 15 dogs 
being allowed on the site at any one time, in order to 
protect residential amenity.

(Speakers: The Panel was addressed by Lysette 
Penston of the Cookham Society, Mark Howard of 
Cookham Parish Council and Barry Head, the applicant.)

Item 3*

18/00582/FULL

20 and Land at 20 
Kelsey Close, 
Maidenhead

New dwelling and associated parking and single storey 
rear extension to the existing dwelling.

Councillor Sharp put forward a motion to REFUSE the 
application, as per the Officer’s recommendation. This 
was seconded by Councillor Walters.

The Panel VOTED UNANIMOUSLY to REFUSE the 
application, as per the Officer’s recommendation.

(Speakers: The Panel was addressed by Robert 
Laukkanen, objector, John Walsby of Cox Green Parish 
Council and Helen Steel, the applicant.)

Item 4*

18/00775/FULL

White House, Star 
Lane, Reading RG10 
9XY

Two storey side and single storey side extension 
following demolition of lean to kitchen/garage.

Councillor Hunt put forward a motion to APPROVE the 
application, contrary to the Officer’s recommendation. 
This was seconded by Councillor Sharp.

A named vote was carried out. Seven Members 
(Councillors Hunt, Kellaway, Love, Sharp, Smith, 
Stretton and Walters) voted in favour of the motion and 
one Member (Councillor Wilson) voted against. The 
motion was carried.

The Panel VOTED to APPROVE the application, 
contrary to the Officer’s recommendation, by reason of 
the reduced impact on the street scene, the 
enhancement of the right of way and there being no 
visual impact on the Green Belt from the right of way 
collectively constituting very special circumstances of 

6



iii
Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead
Document Title: Minutes of the Maidenhead Development Management Panel – Wednesday, 9 May 2018
Author: Shilpa Manek
Creation Date: Monday, 30 April 2018

sufficient weight to outweigh the in-principle harm to the 
Green Belt by reason of inappropriateness, and any 
other harm. Approval was granted subject to conditions 
of work being commenced within three years of the 
application being approved; for materials that matched 
the existing property to be specified; and the removal of 
Permitted Development Rights being delegated to the 
Head of Planning.

(Speaker: The Panel was addressed by Madeleine 
Murray, the applicant.)

81 ESSENTIAL MONITORING REPORTS (MONITORING)
The Panel noted the appeal decisions. 

The meeting, which began at 7.00 pm, ended at 9.09 pm

Chairman…………………….

Date…………………………..

7



This page is intentionally left blank



AGLIST

ROYAL BOROUGH OF WINDSOR & MAIDENHEAD

Maidenhead Panel

6th June 2018

INDEX

APP = Approval

CLU = Certificate of Lawful Use

DD = Defer and Delegate

DLA = Defer Legal Agreement

PERM = Permit

PNR = Prior Approval Not Required

REF = Refusal

WA = Would Have Approved

WR = Would Have Refused

Item No. 1 Application No. 18/00864/FULL Recommendation PERM Page No. 
11

Location: Cookham Rise Primary School  High Road Cookham Maidenhead SL6 9JF

Proposal: Installation of a new outdoor learning classroom

Applicant: Mr Jones Member Call-in: Not applicable Expiry Date: 8 June 2018
___________________________________________________________________________________

Item No. 2 Application No. 18/00938/VAR Recommendation REF Page No. 
17

Location: Green Trees  Widbrook Road Maidenhead SL6 8HS

Proposal: Variation of Condition 9 (cycle parking), Condition 10 (refuse and recycling) and Condition 16 (approved plans) 
of approved application 17/02830/VAR to substitute the approved plan WID/1311_106 with an amended plan 
for the erection of 10 x 2 bed and 2 x 1 bed flats with associated vehicular access, car parking, refuse and 
cycle storage following demolition of existing buildings.

Applicant: David Howells Member Call-in: Not applicable Expiry Date: 5 July 2018
___________________________________________________________________________________

Item No. 3 Application No. 18/01286/FULL Recommendation PERM Page No. 
39

Location: Holy Trinity CE Primary School School Lane Cookham Maidenhead SL6 9QJ

Proposal: Timber cladding to the existing water tower structure and to three sides of the modular building.

Applicant: Mr Ansell Member Call-in: Not applicable Expiry Date: 29 June 2018
___________________________________________________________________________________

Appeal Decision Report                                                                                                            Page No. 47

Planning Appeals Received                                                                                                      Page No. 51

9

Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



ROYAL BOROUGH OF WINDSOR & MAIDENHEAD
PLANNING COMMITTEE

MAIDENHEAD DEVELOPMENT CONTROL PANEL

6 June 2018 Item: 1
Application
No.:

18/00864/FULL

Location: Cookham Rise Primary School High Road Cookham Maidenhead SL6 9JF
Proposal: Installation of a new outdoor learning classroom
Applicant: Mr Jones
Agent: Not Applicable
Parish/Ward: Cookham Parish/Bisham And Cookham Ward

If you have a question about this report, please contact: Susan Sharman on 01628 685320 or at
susan.sharman@rbwm.gov.uk

1. SUMMARY

1.1 The proposal is for a single storey modular outdoor learning classroom to be used solely to
enhance the existing learning facilities at Cookham Rise Primary School. It will not be used to
facilitate an increase in the numbers of pupils and there will be no increase in the level of staffing.
The proposed building would not harm the character and appearance of the area, nor the living
conditions of any neighbours.

It is recommended the Panel grants planning permission with the conditions listed in
Section 10 of this report.

2. REASON FOR PANEL DETERMINATION

 The Council’s Constitution does not give the Head of Planning delegated powers to
determine the application in the way recommended; such decisions can only be made by the
Panel.

3. DESCRIPTION OF THE SITE AND ITS SURROUNDINGS

3.1 The application site relates to Cookham Rise Primary School, which is located on the south side
of High Road. The site is a rectangular shape, with the existing single storey building occupying
approximately one-third of the site. Beyond this are the school’s playing fields.

3.2 The school building adjoins the local library, but the area is predominantly residential, with
dwellings located to the north, east and west of the site. The Alfred Major Recreation Ground lies
to the south.

4. DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSAL AND ANY RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

4.1

Ref. Description Decision and Date

16/01360/FULL Rear classroom extension. Approved 08.07.16
14/01610/FULL Installation of roof mounted mechanical

ventilation plant and screening.
Approved 31.07.14

11/00144/FULL Erection of 2 Gazebos. Approved 01.03.11
10/01272/FULL Single storey rear canopy area. Approved 27.07.10
10/01025/FULL Erection of a log cabin. Approved 07.07.10
09/01856/FULL Installation of replacement external play

equipment and erection of fence.
Approved 01.12.09

04/41719/FULL Alterations to door and windows to front elevation
of main school building.

Approved 30.04.04

11



4.2 The proposal is for a single storey modular classroom, measuring 12.3m by 6m and 3.2 metres in
height. The new building is to be used as an outdoor learning area for the school and is to be
used solely to enhance the existing learning environment, rather than as part of an expansion
involving additional pupils or staff.

5. MAIN RELEVANT STRATEGIES AND POLICIES RELEVANT TO THE DECISION

5.1 National Planning Policy Framework Sections

Royal Borough Local Plan

5.2 The main strategic planning considerations applying to the site and the associated policies are:

Within settlement
area

Community
Facilities

DG1 CF2/3

These policies can be found at
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/downloads/download/154/local_plan_documents_and_appendices

Borough Local Plan: Submission Version

Issue Local Plan Policy
Design in keeping with character and appearance
of area

SP2, SP3

Community Facilities IF 7

The NPPF sets out that decision-makers may give weight to relevant policies in emerging plans
according to their stage of preparation. The Borough Local Plan Submission Document was
published in June 2017. Public consultation ran from 30 June to 27 September 2017. Following
this process the Council prepared a report summarising the issues raised in the representations
and setting out its response to them. This report, together with all the representations received
during the representation period, the plan and its supporting documents have now been
submitted to the Secretary of State for examination.

The Submission Version of the Borough Local Plan does not form part of the statutory
development plan for the Borough. However, by publishing and submitting the Borough Local
Plan for independent examination the Council has formally confirmed its intention to adopt the
submission version. As the Council considers the emerging Borough Local Plan to be sound and
legally compliant, officers and Councillors should accord relevant policies and allocations
significant weight in the determination of applications taking account of the extent to which there
are unresolved objections to relevant policies. Therefore, the weight afforded to each policy at
this stage will differ depending on the level and type of representation to that policy. This is
addressed in more details in the assessment below.

Significant weight is to be accorded to Borough Local Plan Submission Version policies SP 2, SP
3 and IF 7 in this case. The application is considered to comply with the relevant policies listed
within the Development Plan and those Borough Local Plan Submission Version policies to which
significant weight is to be accorded.

This document can be found at:
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/info/201026/borough_local_plan/1351/submission/1

Supplementary planning documents

5.3 Supplementary planning documents adopted by the Council relevant to the proposal are:

● Sustainable Design and Construction;
● Cookham Village Design Statement.

12



More information on these documents can be found at:
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/info/200414/local_development_framework/494/supplementary_planni
ng

6. EXPLANATION OF RECOMMENDATION

6.1 The key issues for consideration are:

i The impact on the character and appearance of the area;

ii The impact on the amenities of neighbours; and

iii Parking.

The impact on the character and appearance of the area

6.2 The proposed classroom would be located to the rear of the existing school buildings, adjacent
to the north-east side boundary that runs alongside Worster Road. The building will be largely
invisible from public vantage points around the site due to its low lying design and distance from
most of the boundaries – it will be at least 50m from the north, east and south boundaries, and
would be positioned behind a 4m high hedge along the east boundary. Given the small scale of
the building, distance from boundaries and boundary treatment, it would have no adverse impact
on the character and appearance of the area.

The impact on the amenities of neighbours

6.3 The proposed classroom would be approximately 12m from the nearest residential property
(Laburnham, Worster Road). Given the separation distances involved, the proposal will not
harm the living conditions of any neighbours in terms of loss of light, by appearing overbearing or
by resulting in loss of any sunlight or daylight.

Parking

6.4 The proposed classroom is to provide an outdoor learning area to enhance the facilities at the
school. It will not lead to the increase in numbers of employees at the school and as such does
not give rise to a need for any additional parking. The Highway Authority has raised no
objections to the proposal.

7. COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY (CIL)

7.1 Given the nature of the development is not liable for financial contributions.

8. CONSULTATIONS CARRIED OUT

Comments from interested parties

19 occupiers were notified directly of the application.

The planning officer posted a notice advertising the application at the site on 10th April 2018.

No letters of representation have been received.

13



Consultees responses

Consultee Comment
Where in the
report this is
considered

Cookham
Parish Council

No comments received. -

Highway
Authority

No objections. 6.4

Environmental
Protection

Recommends planning conditions in respect of construction
working hours, collections during demolition and
construction hours, plus and dust and smoke control
informatives.

None of these
suggested
conditions are
considered
necessary to
impose on any
approval due to
the nature of the
proposals.

9. APPENDICES TO THIS REPORT

 Appendix A - Site plan

 Appendix B – Proposed plan and elevation drawings

10. CONDITIONS RECOMMENDED FOR INCLUSION IF PERMISSION IS GRANTED

1 The development hereby permitted shall be commenced within three years from the date of this
permission.
Reason: To accord with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
(as amended).

2 The materials to be used on the external surfaces of the development shall be in accordance with
those specified in the application unless any different materials are first agreed in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
details.
Reason: In the interests of the visual amenities of the area. Relevant Policies - Local Plan DG1.

14



18/00864 

APPENDIX A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Proposed outdoor classroom 

15



18/00864 

APPENDIX B 

 

 

16



ROYAL BOROUGH OF WINDSOR & MAIDENHEAD
PLANNING COMMITTEE

MAIDENHEAD DEVELOPMENT CONTROL PANEL

6 June 2018 Item: 2
Application
No.:

18/00938/VAR

Location: Green Trees Widbrook Road Maidenhead SL6 8HS
Proposal: Variation of Condition 9 (cycle parking), Condition 10 (refuse and recycling) and

Condition 16 (approved plans) of approved application 17/02830/VAR to substitute the
approved plan WID/1311_106 with an amended plan for the erection of 10 x 2 bed and
2 x 1 bed flats with associated vehicular access, car parking, refuse and cycle storage
following demolition of existing buildings.

Applicant: David Howells
Agent: Not Applicable
Parish/Ward: Maidenhead Unparished/Maidenhead Riverside Ward

If you have a question about this report, please contact: Susan Sharman on 01628 685320 or at
susan.sharman@rbwm.gov.uk

1. SUMMARY

1.1 The application seeks to vary conditions 9 (cycle parking), 10 (refuse and recycling) and 16
(approved plans) of application 17/02830, (which was itself a variation to application 16/00811).
However, the scale and design of the proposed carport is significantly different from that originally
approved under application 16/00811 and varied by application 17/02830. As such, the proposal
is not considered to be a minor material amendment and not acceptable as a S.73 minor material
amendment.

1.2 In addition, the proposed carport by reason of its siting, scale and design would not respond to
local character or add to the overall quality of the area, but would appear incongruous in the
street scene and result in a cramped, overdevelopment of the site detracting from the distinctive
spacious and leafy character of the area.

It is recommended the Panel refuses planning permission for the following summarised
reasons (the full reasons are identified in Section 9 of this report):

1. The proposal is not a minor material amendment and therefore not acceptable as a S.73
application.

2. The proposal would harm the character and appearance of the area and is contrary to
policies DG1, H10 and H11 of the Local Plan, SP 2 and SP 3 of the submission version of
the Borough Local Plan and paragraphs 58 and 64 of the NPPF.

2. REASON FOR PANEL DETERMINATION

 The Council’s Constitution does not give the Head of Planning delegated powers to
determine the application in the way recommended; such decisions can only be made by the
Panel.

3. DESCRIPTION OF THE SITE AND ITS SURROUNDINGS

3.1 The site comprises a plot measuring approximately 0.19 hectares on the southern side of
Widbrook Road at the junction with Sheephouse Road. The large detached house, known as
Green Trees, has been demolished with the block of 12 flats (allowed on appeal) currently under
construction. The site is located in a residential area approximately 600 metres from the River
Thames.

17



4. DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSAL AND ANY RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

4.1 The original application, 16/00811/FULL, to which this proposal relates, was for the erection of 10
x 2 bed and 2 x 1 bed flats with associated vehicular access, car parking, refuse and cycle
storage following demolition of existing buildings. That application was refused by the Panel in
2016 on the grounds that the scale and appearance of the building (the flats) would be harmful to
the character of the area. The application was subsequently allowed on appeal in July 2017.

4.2 Planning permission to vary the plans approved under 16/00811 was granted by the Panel under
application 17/02830 in October 2017.

4.3 This application seeks to vary conditions 9 (cycle parking), condition 10 (refuse and recycling)
and condition 16 (approved plans) of application 17/02830. The variation would allow for the
approved carport and associated cycle and bin store to be further amended.

4.4 The carports (two) approved under 17/02830 each measured 16.95m wide, 5.5m deep and 4m
high. The single carport proposed by this application would replace the two car ports previously
proposed and would measure 34.9m wide, 6.8m deep and 5m high and would be positioned
immediately adjacent to the east side boundary.

4.5

Ref. Description Decision and Date

18/00795/CONDIT Details required by condition 2 (materials
samples), 3 (finished slab levels), 5
(method of no dig construction), 6 (tree
protection), 7 (hard and soft
landscaping),12 (existing access), 14
(SUDs) and 15 (pergolas and privacy
screens) of planning permission
17/02830/VAR.

Pending determination.

17/02924/CONDIT Details required by condition 3 (external
materials), 4 (finished slab levels), 6
(method of no dig construction), 8 (hard
and soft landscaping), 9 (access,
vehicle/cycle parking areas) of planning
permission 16/00811.

Approved 20.02.18.

17/02830/VAR Variation of application 16/00811 to
replace approved plans with amended
plans.

Approved 2.11.17.

17/02345/CONDIT Details required by condition 12
(Construction Method Statement) of
planning permission 16/00811.

Approved 15.09.17.

16/00811/FULL Erection of 10 x 2 bed and 2 x 1 bed flats
with associated vehicular access, car
parking, refuse and cycle storage following
demolition of existing buildings

Refused – 09.09.2016

Appeal Allowed - 04.07.2017

5. MAIN RELEVANT STRATEGIES AND POLICIES RELEVANT TO THE DECISION

5.1 National Planning Policy Framework Sections: Core Planning Principles and 7 (requiring good
design).

18



Royal Borough Local Plan

5.2 The main strategic planning considerations applying to the site and the associated policies are:

Within settlement
area

Highways and
Parking Trees Flooding

DG1, H10, H11 P4, T5 N6 F1

These policies can be found at
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/downloads/download/154/local_plan_documents_and_appendices

Borough Local Plan: Submission Version

Issue Local Plan Policy
Design in keeping with character and appearance
of area

SP2, SP3

Manages flood risk and waterways NR1
Makes suitable provision for infrastructure IF1

The NPPF sets out that decision-makers may give weight to relevant policies in emerging plans
according to their stage of preparation. The Borough Local Plan Submission Document was
published in June 2017. Public consultation ran from 30 June to 27 September 2017. Following
this process the Council prepared a report summarising the issues raised in the representations
and setting out its response to them. This report, together with all the representations received
during the representation period, the plan and its supporting documents have now been
submitted to the Secretary of State for examination.

The Submission Version of the Borough Local Plan does not form part of the statutory
development plan for the Borough. However, by publishing and submitting the Borough Local
Plan for independent examination the Council has formally confirmed its intention to adopt the
submission version. As the Council considers the emerging Borough Local Plan to be sound and
legally compliant, officers and Councillors should accord relevant policies and allocations
significant weight in the determination of applications taking account of the extent to which there
are unresolved objections to relevant policies. Therefore, the weight afforded to each policy at
this stage will differ depending on the level and type of representation to that policy. This is
addressed in more details in the assessment below.

Significant weight is to be accorded to Borough Local Plan Submission Version policies SP 2
Sustainability and Place Making and SP 3 Character and Design of New Development in this
case. The application is not considered to comply with the relevant policies listed within the
Development Plan and those Borough Local Plan Submission Version policies to which
significant weight is to be accorded.

This document can be found at:
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/info/201026/borough_local_plan/1351/submission/1

Supplementary planning documents

5.3 Supplementary planning documents adopted by the Council relevant to the proposal are:

 The Interpretation of Policy F1 (Area Liable to Flooding) Supplementary Planning Guidance
(SPG) 2004

More information on this document can be found at:
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/info/200414/local_development_framework/494/supplementary_planni
ng

19



Other Local Strategies or Publications

5.4 Other Strategies or publications relevant to the proposal are:

 RBWM Townscape Assessment
 RBWM Parking Strategy

More information on these documents can be found at:
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/info/200414/local_development_framework/494/supplementary_planni
ng

6. EXPLANATION OF RECOMMENDATION

6.1 The key issues for consideration are:

i Whether the proposal is acceptable for consideration as a S73. Application;

ii The impact of the proposal on the character and appearance of the area;

iii The impact on the living conditions of occupiers of neighbouring properties;

iv The acceptability of the parking provision;

v Flood risk; and

vi Other material considerations.

Whether the proposal is acceptable for consideration as a S73. Application

6.2 Planning permissions are required to be implemented as approved. However, it is recognised
that in some cases unforeseen circumstances may arise that call for a flexible approach to be
taken. Section 73 of the Town and Country Planning Act (TCPA) 1990 provides some flexibility
to enable ‘minor material amendments’ to be made to extant planning permissions by, for
example, making changes to the plans originally approved under an existing permission. These
S.73 applications are often referred to as variation applications, hence the suffix VAR to this
application number. National Planning Policy Guidance on this type of application advises
“Where an application under section 73 is granted, the effect is the issue of a new planning
permission, sitting alongside the original permission, which remains intact and unamended. A
decision notice describing the new permission should be issued, setting out all of the conditions
related to it. To assist with clarity decision notices for the grant of planning permission under
section 73 should also repeat the relevant conditions from the original planning permission,
unless they have already been discharged.”

6.3 The original planning permission for the development under construction on site (allowed on
appeal) and to which this application, relates was 16/00811/FULL. This was varied by way of a
S73 application reference 17/02830/VAR, (as per the report set out in Appendix C), and resulted
in a new planning permission that included changes to the carports. Notably, however, while the
Planning Inspector referenced (and approved) a plan (that was revealed by 17/02830 to be in
relation to the carports) this was not submitted to the Council either originally with the application
or at the appeal. A copy of this original plan does not exist with the Council under application
16/00811 nor is it available on the Planning Inspectorate’s website under the appeal for this
application.

6.4 Perhaps confusingly given application 17/02830, the applicant applied to discharge some of the
planning conditions in relation to the original permission 16/00811, under application reference
17/02924. This conditions application included details of the hard and soft landscaping to be
approved. The original plan submitted with the application showed the substantial hedge and
trees along the southern and western boundaries to be retained and protected during

20



construction. However, a further landscaping plan was submitted showing this vegetation to be
removed and replaced with a 100 – 125cm Prunus lustinica. Although the Tree Officer’s advice
was not given in relation to the revised scheme, previous advice on the original application was
that there was no guarantee that the hedges and trees along the southern and western
boundaries could be retained due to insufficient space remaining to construct the flats.

6.5 This current application is now seeking to vary the earlier variation application. As planning
permissions 16/00811 and 17/02830 represent a ‘fallback’ position for the applicant, i.e. the
development that has been approved to date and that can be implemented, they are material to
the consideration of the current application. The justifications for the previous approvals,
particularly the appeal, also remain relevant to the consideration of the current variation
application. Under ‘Reasons’ in the decision letter, the Planning Inspector advises “The western,
southern and eastern boundaries of the site are enclosed by mature landscaping and
consequently there is very little visual exposure of the site from Sheephouse Road or
neighbouring gardens”. The Inspector adds that although there is no dispute that there would be
a significant uplift in density at odds with the character of the immediate area, “the development
with its single central doorway would appear in most views as a detached residence similar,
albeit larger, to the existing dwelling as opposed to a block of flats.” Paragraph 10 of the
Inspector’s decision advises that “the height and maturity of the landscaping along Sheephouse
Lane would provide effective year round screening. Given its orientation to Widbrook Road and
the potential for existing frontage landscaping to be supplemented as part of a comprehensive
landscaping scheme, I do not consider the parking area would be particularly prominent in the
street scene and would only be readily seen in views through the access.”

6.6 The scale and design of the proposed carport is significantly different from that originally
approved under application 16/00811 and varied by application 17/02830. In addition, having
regard to the Planning Inspector’s reasoning (a copy of the appeal decision is in Appendix D),
based in part on the retention of mature landscaping to the site’s boundaries, the context in
which the appeal was allowed has materially changed, albeit lawfully. As such, the proposal is
not considered to be a minor material amendment and not considered acceptable as a S.73
application.

6.7 It should be noted that while the proposal is not considered acceptable as a S.73 application, it
remains that the applicant could submit a full application under S.70 of the TCPA.

The impact of the proposal on the character and appearance of the area

6.8 The application site is located within an area identified in the RBWM Townscape Assessment
(2010) as a ‘Leafy Residential Suburb’. These areas are described as being “low density
residential suburbs comprising large detached houses in spacious irregular well treed plots,
typically dating from the early 20th Century to the present day. The type is defined by large
properties set well back from the road, behind dense/high ornamental hedges with gravel drives
and gates. These suburbs are neat, manicured and managed, with a private character”. The
Townscape Assessment (TA) advises that the Leafy Residential Suburbs seem to be relatively
stable in terms of change, but are under threat by development intensification, including
subdivision of plots and extensions to dwellings or subdivision of properties into flats, and
modern development with open or ‘urbanised’ frontages such as parapet walls, open gardens
frontages and extensive hardstanding, which detract from the ‘leafy’ character.

6.9 As outlined earlier in this report, the Planning Inspector’s reasons for allowing the development
were based on the original application’s proposal to retain the mature boundary landscaping and
the appearance of the main building as a single residence rather than a block of flats.

6.10 Notwithstanding that the trees were not protected by a preservation order or from being in a
Conservation Area, the applicant showed the boundary trees to be retained under applications
16/00811 and 17/02830, and on the landscaping plan originally submitted under conditions
application 17/02924. However, and as originally advised by the Council’s Tree Officer under
application 16/00811, it became apparent that the boundary trees were unlikely to be retained
given the proximity of the flats to them and they were removed. This mature landscaping referred
to in the Inspector’s decision was a key feature of the site that made an important contribution to

21



the leafy character of the area. As a result, it is no longer the case that “there is very little visual
exposure of the site”, (according to the Planning Inspector). Instead views of the application site
will be far more open allowing the development to be easily read against the wider and
contrasting character of the area.

6.11 This application is concerned with the impact of the proposed amended carport. In comparison
to the previously approved carports, the new structure would be 1m longer, 1.3 metres deeper
and 1 metre higher with a 2 metre high centrally positioned dovecote. On the face of it, this does
not appear materially different. However when regard is had to the total scale of the structure,
(which would be 34.9m wide, 6.8m deep and 5m high, plus dovecote), its position 0.5m from the
east side boundary, (compared to 1.5m previously approved), together with the more open nature
of the site, lack of space for meaningful landscaping, the scale of the block of flats and amount of
hardstanding, the result is one of a clearly overdeveloped site, in a prominent location at the
junction of Widbrook Road and Sheephouse Road. The carport, which would not have been
previously apparent from outside of the site, will extend 3.2m above the boundary fencing with at
least half of its length visible from the east and north-west. The addition of a 2m high dovecote
on top, and in the centre, of the carport roof would further highlight the scale of the building. Not
only is this size of outbuilding out of character with the area, it would draw attention to the fact
that the development is not a single residence (as justified by the Planning Inspector) but in fact a
block of flats; A single residence does not normally require a carport or garage of this size and
scale, or if it does it is set within a much more spacious plot.

6.12 Essentially, the proposed larger carport structure by reason of its siting, scale and design, would
not respond to local character or add to the overall quality of the area, but would appear
incongruous in the street scene and result in a cramped, overdevelopment of the site, detracting
from the distinctive spacious and leafy character of the area. As such the proposal is contrary to
policies DG1, H10 and H11 of the Local Plan, SP 2 and SP 3 of the submission version of the
Borough Local Plan and paragraphs 58 and 64 of the NPPF.

The impact on the living conditions of occupiers of neighbouring properties

6.13 The closest residential property to the proposed carport would be ‘Riversdale’ which lies
immediately to the east approximately 1.8m away. Given its close proximity, height and length,
the carport would be clearly visible from three sides of the neighbouring property. However, as
the main front and rear aspects of this property would remain largely open, and having regard to
the ridge height of the carport at 5m, the development would not appear unduly overbearing.
The position of the neighbouring property to the east and the height of the carport means that the
proposal would also not result in unacceptable loss of sunlight or daylight to ‘Riversdale’. No loss
of privacy will arise as a result of the proposal.

6.14 Overall, it is not considered that the proposed carport would harm the living conditions of the
neighbours.

Parking provision

6.15 The Highway Authority has provided the following advice: Condition 9 (Cycle Parking) Drawing
number 1311.PLN.G02 shows a cycle store will be provided which will accommodate 12 cycle
spaces. This complies with the Local Authorities current standard. The applicant should provide a
wider entrance to the cycle store to enable easier access to and from the store.

6.16 Condition 10 ( Refuse and Recycling) Drawing number 1311.PLN.G02 shows a large refuse store
will be provided to the front of the site which will be provided with a double door. This is accepted.

6.17 Condition 16 (approved plans): From scaling drawing number 1311.PLN.G02 each car port
measures internally 3.0m x 6.0m. This is accepted. 22 car parking spaces are still provided as
agreed under 17/02830.

6.18 The Highway Authority offers no objection to conditions 9 (Cycle Parking), 10 (Refuse and
Recycling) and 16 (Approved Plans).

22



Flood risk

6.19 The increase in the depth of the proposed carport, bin and cycle store by 1.3m would increase
the footprint of the building by 45sq.m. However, given the site’s location on a ‘dry island’ the
proposal is not considered to compromise flood capacity. The Lead Local Flood Authority has
advised under this application that the proposal is unlikely to have an impact on the surface water
drainage strategy and therefore has no objection to the proposal.

Other Material Considerations

6.20 Advice from the Tree Officer is awaited and will be reported by way of a Panel Update.

6.21 The proposal is liable to the Council’s Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) chargeable at £100
per square metre. Any amount confirmed under applications 16/00811 and 17/02830 will be
adjusted as necessary.

7. CONSULTATIONS CARRIED OUT

Comments from interested parties

26 occupiers were notified directly of the application.

The planning officer posted a notice advertising the application at the site on 12th April 2018.

4 letters were received objecting to the application, summarised as:

Comment
Where in the
report this is
considered

1. There is no evidence that any carports have been previously
approved.

6.3

2. The large roofscape will increase surface water on the site. 6.19
3. Carports will make turning within the site more difficult and combined

with the security gates will lead to cars being parked on Widbrook
Road, leaving insufficient width for two cars to pass causing
potentially dangerous traffic conflicts at the junction with Sheephouse
Road.

6.15 – 6.18

4. The addition of carports will intensify the visual massing of building on
the site and add to uncharacteristic intensity of building on this site
contrasting unacceptably with the surrounding area.

6.11

5. Instead of a green hedge along the boundary with the neighbour there
will be a tall, continuous wall and pitched roof of 30m long intruding
into the otherwise open front garden areas along Widbrook Road.
Much was made in the appeal submission that the open areas to the
front of properties would be retained – the proposal ignores this
important design approach.

6.11 – 6.12

6. The continuous submission of various applications for this site makes
it very difficult for local residents to understand what is being
implemented.

6.2 – 6.5

7. What is now proposed is significantly more dramatic in its adverse
impact on site and local character than the original approval that it is
not acceptable as a S.73 application.

6.6

8. There should be no carports on this site as they will restrict the
amount of space available for parking

6.15 – 6.18

9. The parking provision is insufficient and will lead to on-street parking
on Widbrook Road, which is a dangerous to pedestrians and drivers.

6.15 – 6.18

10. The limited space within the carport will lead to people parking
elsewhere, such as on Widbrook Road.

6.16 – 6.18

23



11. The turret on the roof should be removed. 6.11
12. These are garages without doors. Doors will be added later and

these garages will not be used for parking leading to problems with
parking on Widbrook Road.

6.15 – 6.18

Consultee responses

Consultee Comment
Where in the
report this is
considered

Highway
Authority

No objection. 6.15 – 6.18

Lead Local
Flood
Authority

No objection. 6.19

Tree Officer Advice awaited – to be reported in Panel Update.

8. APPENDICES TO THIS REPORT

 Appendix A - Site location plan and proposed site layout

 Appendix B – Proposed plan and elevation drawings

 Appendix C – Copy of Panel report for 17/02830

 Appendix D – Copy of appeal decision

9. REASONS RECOMMENDED FOR REFUSAL IF PERMISSION IS NOT GRANTED

1 Having regard to the appeal decision for application 16/00811/FULL, subsequently varied by
application 17/02830/VAR, which was based in part on the retention of mature landscaping to the
site's boundaries, the Local Planning Authority considers the context in which the appeal was
allowed has materially changed. In addition, the scale and design of the proposed carport is
significantly different from that originally approved under application 16/00811 and varied by
application 17/02830. As such, the proposal is not a minor material amendment and not
acceptable to be considered and determined as a S.73 application.

2 The proposed carport structure, by reason of its siting, exposed appearance, scale and design,
would not respond to local character or add to the overall quality of the area, but would appear
incongruous in the street scene and result in a cramped, overdevelopment of the site, detracting
from the distinctive spacious and leafy character of the area. As such the proposal is contrary to
adopted policies DG1, H10 and H11 of the Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Local
Plan 1999 (including alterations, adopted 2003), policies SP 2 and SP 3 of the submission
version of the Borough Local Plan and paragraphs 58 and 64 of the National Planning Policy
Framework.

24



18/00938 

APPENDIX A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Proposed carport, bin and cycle store 

25



18/00938 

APPENDIX B 

 

 

 

 

26



18/00938 

APPENDIX C 

 

 

 

27



 

 

 

 

28



 

 

 

29



 

 

 

 

30



 

 

 

 

31



 

 

 

32



 

 

 

 

33



 

 

 

34



18/00938 

APPENDIX D 

 

35



 

36



 

 

37



 

 

38



ROYAL BOROUGH OF WINDSOR & MAIDENHEAD
PLANNING COMMITTEE

MAIDENHEAD DEVELOPMENT CONTROL PANEL

6 June 2018 Item: 3
Application
No.:

18/01286/FULL

Location: Holy Trinity CE Primary School School Lane Cookham Maidenhead SL6 9QJ
Proposal: Timber cladding to the existing water tower structure and to three sides of the modular

building.
Applicant: Mr Ansell
Agent: Not Applicable
Parish/Ward: Cookham Parish/Bisham And Cookham Ward

If you have a question about this report, please contact: Sheila Bowen on 01628 796061 or at
sheila.bowen@rbwm.gov.uk

1. SUMMARY

1.1 The timber cladding to the modular unit and water tower would improve the appearance of the
buildings, and would preserve and enhance the character of the Cookham High Street
Conservation Area.

It is recommended the Panel delegate authority to the Head of Planning to grant planning
permission with the conditions listed in Section 9 of this report, following the end of the
consultation period on 8 June 2018, provided no representations are received which
would necessitate a different decision.

2. REASON FOR PANEL DETERMINATION

 The Council’s Constitution does not give the Head of Planning delegated powers to
determine the application in the way recommended; such decisions can only be made by the
Panel.

3. DESCRIPTION OF THE SITE AND ITS SURROUNDINGS

3.1 The site is a primary school located on the edge of the Cookham High Street Conservation Area.
The main school buildings and water tower are brick built, while the modular unit to the rear is
made of pre-fabricated “Stenni” render panels.

4. DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSAL AND ANY RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

4.1 The proposal is to clad the water tower structure, and three sides of the modular unit with timber
cladding. It will be contemporary vertical boarding in Cedar or similarly environmentally friendly
timber.

4.2 No relevant planning history

5. MAIN RELEVANT STRATEGIES AND POLICIES RELEVANT TO THE DECISION

5.1 National Planning Policy Framework Sections 17, 56-58, 64.

Royal Borough Local Plan

5.2 The main strategic planning considerations applying to the site and the associated policies are:

39



Within settlement
area Community Facility
DG1 CF2

These policies can be found at
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/downloads/download/154/local_plan_documents_and_appendices

Borough Local Plan: Submission Version

Issue Local Plan Policy
Design in keeping with character and appearance
of area

SP2, SP3

The NPPF sets out that decision-makers may give weight to relevant policies in emerging plans
according to their stage of preparation. The Borough Local Plan Submission Document was
published in June 2017. Public consultation ran from 30 June to 27 September 2017. Following
this process the Council prepared a report summarising the issues raised in the representations
and setting out its response to them. This report, together with all the representations received
during the representation period, the plan and its supporting documents have now been
submitted to the Secretary of State for examination. The Submission Version of the Borough
Local Plan does not form part of the statutory development plan for the Borough. However, by
publishing and submitting the Borough Local Plan for independent examination the Council has
formally confirmed its intention to adopt the submission version. As the Council considers the
emerging Borough Local Plan to be sound and legally compliant, officers and Councillors should
accord relevant policies and allocations significant weight in the determination of applications
taking account of the extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies.
Therefore, the weight afforded to each policy at this stage will differ depending on the level and
type of representation to that policy. This is addressed in more detail in the assessment below.

Significant weight is to be accorded to Borough Local Plan Submission Version policies SP2 and
SP3 in this case. The above application is considered to comply with the relevant policies listed
within the Development Plan and those Borough Local Plan Submission Version policies to which
significant weight is to be accorded.

This document can be found at:
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/info/201026/borough_local_plan/1351/submission/1

Other Local Strategies or Publications

5.3 Other Strategies or publications relevant to the proposal are:

 RBWM Townscape Assessment – view at:

More information on this document can be found at:
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/info/200414/local_development_framework/494/supplementary_planni
ng

6. EXPLANATION OF RECOMMENDATION

6.1 The key issues for consideration are:

i whether the proposed timber cladding would be in keeping with the character of the area;
and

ii whether the proposal would preserve or enhance the Cookham High Street Conservation
Area.

Character

40



6.2 The RBWM Townscape Assessment June 2010 does not give specific guidance on the school or
its modular building. However, it is considered that the proposed timber cladding to a modern
modular building, which currently has a pinkish cladding, and to the water tower, would be an
improvement to the current appearance of these buildings. It should be noted also that they are
only really visible from within the school site, and are hardly visible from School Lane.

6.3 The Cookham Village Design Statement states that the buildings of Holy Trinity Primary School
‘present an enthusiastic modern extension around an imposing mid-Victorian and highly
decorative structure’. The parts to be clad are not part of the original Victorian structure.
Guidance G7.1 states that any proposals for development in Cookham Village should have
regard to the General Guidance of Section 6 and all other relevant Guidance Points in the Village
Design Statement. It also states that the Council should have regard to the impact of the
proposal on the specific locality with reference to any description of that particular locality in the
Village Design Statement, including any special constraints noted. Guidance G6.3 states that
materials should complement those most commonly used throughout Cookham, i.e. red brick,
clay tiles, exposed timbers, white washes or rendering and natural surfaces. Guidance G6.5
states that new development should adhere as far as possible to Cookham’s built-colour palette
of weathered red, beige, white, brown, grey and black. In this case, the use of timber would
comply with Guidance G6.3 and G6.5, and it is noted that the modular building currently does not
comply with this guidance.

6.4 The proposal is considered to comply with Local Plan policies DG1 concerning good design and
CF2 concerning improvements to community facilities.

Impact on the Cookham High Street Conservation Area

6.5 The Council is required to pay special attention to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the
character or appearance of the conservation area, as required under Section 72(1) of the
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990. The school is on the edge of the
Cookham High Street Conservation Area. This Conservation Area shows a variety in
architectural styles from the Norman period to the present day. School Lane in particular shows
examples of some timber clad properties and so the proposal to clad the water tower structure
and the modular building to the rear of the school with timber would be considered acceptable. It
is a reversible process and the cladding would improve the appearance of the modular building
which is presently of “Stenni” pre-fabricated render panels. Furthermore, the panelling is on the
later addition to the non-designated heritage asset and will therefore not cause harm to the
original architecture of Holy Trinity School. The modular building is a modern addition to the
school, and the water tower is not part of the original Victorian Building, and they are both hardly
visible from the public realm. It is considered that the introduction of timber cladding to the
modern modular building and the water tower would be an improvement to the appearance of the
buildings which would enhance the character of the Cookham High Street Conservation Area.

7. CONSULTATIONS CARRIED OUT

Comments from interested parties

12 occupiers were notified directly of the application.

The planning officer posted a notice advertising the application at the site on 10.5.2018 and the
application was advertised in the Maidenhead & Windsor Advertiser on 17.5.2016

No comments were received.

Consultees

Consultee Comment
Where in the
report this is
considered

Environment
Agency

No comment -

41



Conservation
Officer

No objection 6.5

8. APPENDICES TO THIS REPORT

 Appendix A - site location plan and site layout

 Appendix B – plan drawings

 Appendix C – elevation drawings

9. CONDITIONS RECOMMENDED FOR INCLUSION IF PERMISSION IS GRANTED

1 The development hereby permitted shall be commenced within three years from the date of this
permission.
Reason: To accord with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
(as amended).

2 The materials to be used on the external surfaces of the development shall be in accordance with
those specified in the application unless any different materials are first agreed in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
details.
Reason: In the interests of the visual amenities of the area. Relevant Policies - Local Plan DG1.

3 A sample and details of the proposed timber panelling shall be provided and prepared on site and
approved by the Local Planning Authority in writing prior to the commencement of related work.
The work shall be undertaken in accordance with the approved details.
Reason: To preserve or enhance the character of the Conservation Area. Relevant Policies -
Local Plan CA2.

4 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the approved plans
listed below.
Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the approved
particulars and plans.

42



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix A 

 

 

43



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix B 

44



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix C 

 

45



This page is intentionally left blank



ROYAL BOROUGH OF WINDSOR & MAIDENHEAD
PLANNING COMMITTEE

MAIDENHEAD DEVELOPMENT CONTROL PANEL

Appeal Decision Report

27 April 2018 - 24 May 2018

MAIDENHEAD

Appeal Ref.: 17/60117/REF Planning Ref.: 17/00686/FULL PIns Ref.: APP/T0355/W/17/
3186099

Appellant: Mrs Lucy Pickering 116 Woodlands Road Ashurst Southampton SO40 7AL
Decision Type: Committee Officer Recommendation: Refuse
Description: Construction of a pair of detached cottages.
Location: Land Opposite Lenore Cottage Rolls Lane Holyport Maidenhead  
Appeal Decision: Allowed Decision Date: 29 March 2018

Main Issue: The Planning Inspector considered that although the proposed dwellings would be 
inappropriate development in the Green Belt, the existence of an extant planning permission 
for a single-storey bungalow was relevant.  The Inspector considered that the extant 
permission represented a realistic fallback and that, when compared to this, the harm to the 
Green Belt caused by the proposed development would not be materially greater.  The 
Inspector concluded this clearly outweighed the harm to the Green Belt such that very 
special circumstances existed to justify allowing the development.  The costs application was 
refused.

Appeal Ref.: 17/60118/NOND
ET

Planning Ref.: 17/02821/CPD PIns Ref.: APP/T0355/X/17/
3188459

Appellant: Mrs Lucy Pickering 116 Woodlands Road Ashurst Southampton SO40 7AL 
Decision Type: Delegated Officer Recommendation: Would Have 

Refused
Description: Certificate of lawfulness to determine whether the proposed replacement building is lawful
Location: Land Opposite Lenore Cottage  Rolls Lane Holyport Maidenhead SL6 2JQ
Appeal Decision: Dismissed Decision Date: 29 March 2018

Main Issue: The premise underlying the appeal was that the existing use of the site was for B8 storage, 
in which case the proposed building would be 'permitted development'.  The Council's 
submitted that the site had been used as a builder's yard, a sui generis' use, and therefore 
did not benefit from permitted development rights.  The Planning Inspector found that the 
lack of clarity and inconsistency inherent in the appellant's evidence demonstrated that the 
appeal site did not fall within Class B8 of the Use Classes Order and therefore the proposed 
development was not permitted development.  An application by the appellant for an award 
of costs was refused.

47

Agenda Item 5



Appeal Ref.: 18/60018/REF Planning Ref.: 17/02609/FULL PIns Ref.: APP/T0355/W/17/
3187940

Appellant: Mr James Rogers Housing Solutions Crown House Crown Square Maidenhead SL6 8BY
Decision Type: Delegated Officer Recommendation: Refuse
Description: Construction of x2 bin sheds (retrospective)
Location: Land At 36 And 38 Wessex Way And 2 And 4 Cumbria Close And 2 To 24 Northumbria 

Road Maidenhead  
Appeal Decision: Dismissed Decision Date: 1 May 2018

Main Issue: By reason of their bulky appearance, utilitarian design and prominent position in the front and 
side gardens, the bin stores detract from the open plan character of the site and appear as 
unduly dominant features in the streetscene. They are also publicly visible when approaching 
in both directions on Wessex Way, Northumbria Road and Cumbria Close, which intensifies 
their harmful impact.  In view of the above, both bin stores are harmful to the character and 
appearance of the area. The scheme therefore conflicts with Policy DG1 of the Local Plan 
which seeks, amongst other things, to ensure that new development is compatible with the 
established streetscene and does not result in the loss of important features which contribute 
to its character.

Appeal Ref.: 18/60025/REF Planning Ref.: 16/03138/FULL PIns Ref.: APP/T0355/W/17/
3190870

Appellant: Mr And Mrs M Crown c/o Agent: Mr Neil Boddington Boddingtons Planning Ltd 31 Shirburn 
Street Watlington Oxfordshire OX49 5BU

Decision Type: Committee Officer Recommendation: Application 
Permitted

Description: New dwelling following demolition of existing extension and garage at No. 29 Cranbrook 
Drive

Location: Land At 29 Cranbrook Drive Maidenhead  
Appeal Decision: Dismissed Decision Date: 17 May 2018

Main Issue: The Planning Inspector considered the insertion of a double-fronted detached house on a 
relatively small plot would present a cramped and uncomfortable addition.  Unlike the 
majority of two-storey detached corner dwellings in the area, the size of the plot of No 29 and 
the new dwelling would be uncharacteristically small.  Coupled with the narrow gaps to the 
side boundaries, the rhythm and careful spacing of houses that typify the wider suburb would 
be compromised.  The scheme would make provision for an open area to the front, off-street 
parking and a portion of rear garden.  However, it would impose a substantial amount of new 
development and bulk with a footprint that extends rearwards in to the garden plot.  The 
impact would be to substantially erode the extent of space around No.29.  The dwelling 
would overwhelm the plot and ultimately the site's contribution to the sense of openness and 
greenery that characterises the wider area would be diminished.  The proposal would appear 
dominant and prominent in its local context and would be visible from a number of 
neighbouring properties and their gardens. The Planning Inspector did not consider the 
proposed development would harm the living conditions of No.27, but due to the identified 
harm to the character and appearance of the area, the appeal was dismissed.

48



Appeal Ref.: 18/60029/REF Planning Ref.: 17/02093/VAR PIns Ref.: APP/T0355/D/17/
3191058

Appellant: Danny Barney c/o Agent: Mr Ken Marshall Monyash Curls Lane Maidenhead SL6 2QF
Decision Type: Delegated Officer Recommendation: Refuse
Description: Two storey rear extension with first floor side dormer window as approved under planning 

permission 14/01151 without complying with part condition 3 (first floor window(s) to amend 
window to be openable for means of escape.

Location: Beau Regard Smithfield Road Maidenhead SL6 3NP 
Appeal Decision: Allowed Decision Date: 23 April 2018

Main Issue: The Inspector concluded that a condition based on the appellant's suggested alternative 
arrangement for window openings would address effectively the maintenance of privacy in 
accordance with Policy H14 of the Council's Local Plan. Accordingly, the Inspector 
concluded that the alternative condition is reasonable and necessary to maintain the privacy 
of the neighbouring occupiers of the property known as Dorrie and, therefore, the appeal 
should succeed with the alternative condition in place.

Appeal Ref.: 18/60034/REF Planning Ref.: 17/02443/FULL PIns Ref.: APP/T0355W/17/
3189731

Appellant: Mr C Josephs - Partbridge Estates c/o Agent: Mr Anthony Allen Allen Planning Ltd The Old 
Fire Station EC Salt Lane Salisbury SP1 1DU

Decision Type: Delegated Officer Recommendation: Refuse
Description: Third floor roof extension to create 1self-contained (studio) apartment
Location: Gardiner And Leader 23 Queen Street Maidenhead SL6 1NB 
Appeal Decision: Dismissed Decision Date: 4 May 2018

Main Issue: The Inspector concluded that the proposed third floor roof extension would materially harm 
the appearance of the area, including the conservation area, which would not therefore be 
preserved.  Consequently it would conflict with policies DG1, CA2 and MTC4 which 
collectively seek to protect the character and appearance of the area, including the 
conservation area and town centre location.

Appeal Ref.: 18/60035/REF Planning Ref.: 16/03440/FULL PIns Ref.: APP/T0355/W/17/
3189525

Appellant: Mr Sid Dhillon c/o Agent: Mr Paul Butt Paul Butt Planning Ltd 8 Hyde Copse Marcham 
Abingdon Oxfordshire OX13 6PT

Decision Type: Committee Officer Recommendation: Refuse
Description: Construction of two detached dwellings (house A and B) and a new access onto Sandisplatt 

Road to serve House B following demolition of 1 Woodfield Drive.
Location: Piersburgh House 1 Woodfield Drive Maidenhead SL6 4NX 
Appeal Decision: Dismissed Decision Date: 4 May 2018

Main Issue: Views from Sandisplatt Road of the rear elevation of House A in close proximity to the flank 
elevation of House B would be at odds with the more open and spacious character of the 
area and general characteristics of the Leafy Residential Suburb character area. The 
proposal would also result in the pressure to prune or fell existing trees, which make a 
substantial contribution to the character of this section of road, due to their relationship and 
distance from habitable rooms in the proposed development, to the detriment of their health 
and longevity. Given the orientation of House B the proposal would introduce views into the 
garden of 2 Woodfield Drive resulting in loss of privacy. The distance would not be sufficient 
mitigation and screening by planting would not address the issue in the short term. The 
benefit additional housing is given limited weight due to the limited number of houses. 

49



Appeal Ref.: 18/60038/REF Planning Ref.: 17/01897/FULL PIns Ref.: APP/T0355/D/18/
3194942

Appellant: Miss Michelle Hawthorn 23 Farmers Way Maidenhead SL6 3PJ
Decision Type: Delegated Officer Recommendation: Refuse
Description: Erection of a new 2m high fence which has extended the area of the enclosed garden. 

(retrospective)
Location: 23 Farmers Way Maidenhead SL6 3PJ 
Appeal Decision: Dismissed Decision Date: 4 May 2018

Main Issue: The development fails to comply with Policies DG1 and H14 of the Royal Borough of 
Windsor and Maidenhead Local Plan (1999, incorporating alterations adopted 2003), which 
seek to ensure that development is sympathetic to its surroundings and does not adversely 
impact on the streetscene or on the amenities of adjoining properties. It also fails to satisfy 
paragraphs 61 and 64 of the National Planning Policy Framework which seek high quality 
inclusive design which takes the opportunity to improve the character and quality of an area.

50



Planning Appeals Received

27 April 2018 - 24 May 2018

MAIDENHEAD

The appeals listed below have been received by the Council and will be considered by the Planning Inspectorate.  
Should you wish to make additional/new comments in connection with an appeal you can do so on the Planning 
Inspectorate website at https://acp.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/ please use the PIns reference number.  If you do 
not have access to the Internet please write to the relevant address, shown below.

Enforcement appeals:  The Planning Inspectorate, Temple Quay House, 2 The Square, Temple Quay, Bristol, 
BS1 6PN 

Other appeals:  The Planning Inspectorate Temple Quay House, 2 The Square Bristol BS1 6PN 

Ward:
Parish: Maidenhead Unparished
Appeal Ref.: 18/60053/REF Planning Ref.: 17/03098/FULL PIns Ref.: APP/T0355/W/18/

3196911
Date Received: 1 May 2018 Comments Due: 5 June 2018
Type: Refusal Appeal Type: Written Representation
Description: Change of use of existing HMO (Class C4) to a large HMO (Sui Generis) (Retrospective)
Location: Tesca  16 Belmont Road Maidenhead SL6 6JW
Appellant: Mr Leeming c/o Agent: Mrs Emily Temple ET Planning Ltd Beechey House 87 Church 

Street Crowthorne RG45 7AW

Ward:
Parish: Maidenhead Unparished
Appeal Ref.: 18/60054/REF Planning Ref.: 17/02668/FULL PIns Ref.: APP/T0355/W/18/

3193556
Date Received: 2 May 2018 Comments Due: 6 June 2018
Type: Refusal Appeal Type: Written Representation
Description: Change of use from C2 to 7 x self-contained residential flats (use class C3) incorporating 

part two storey/ part single storey rear extension with basement, replacement roof with front 
and rear dormers and side rooflights, and extension to existing rear access.

Location: 74 Norfolk Road Maidenhead SL6 7AZ
Appellant: Mr Amer Awan 32 Castleview Road Slough SL3 7NQ

Ward:
Parish: Maidenhead Unparished
Appeal Ref.: 18/60055/REF Planning Ref.: 17/02604/CLD PIns Ref.: APP/T0355/X/17/

3191078
Date Received: 9 May 2018 Comments Due: 20 June 2018
Type: Refusal Appeal Type: Written Representation
Description: Certificate of lawfulness to determine whether existing use of the workshop as B1C - Light 

Industrial for furniture repairs, general building works, ancillary storage of tools, materials 
and paperwork is lawful

Location: 21A Boyn Valley Road Maidenhead SL6 4DT 
Appellant: Mr R Tucker c/o Agent: Mrs Emily Temple ET Planning Ltd Beechey House 87 Church 

Street Crowthorne Berkshire RG45 7AW 

Ward:
Parish: Hurley Parish
Appeal Ref.: 18/60056/REF Planning Ref.: 17/02232/CPD PIns Ref.: APP/T0355/X/17/

3189850
Date Received: 10 May 2018 Comments Due: 21 June 2018
Type: Refusal Appeal Type: Written Representation
Description: Certificate of lawfulness to determine whether a single storey rear extension is lawful
Location: Haycroft  High Street Hurley Maidenhead SL6 5LT

51

https://acp.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/


Appellant: Mr & Mrs J Dunn c/o Agent: Mr Christian Leigh Leigh And Glennie Ltd 6 All Souls Road 
Ascot Berkshire SL5 9EA

Ward:
Parish: Hurley Parish
Appeal Ref.: 18/60057/REF Planning Ref.: 17/01417/CPD PIns Ref.: APP/T0355/X/17/

3189849
Date Received: 10 May 2018 Comments Due: 21 June 2018
Type: Refusal Appeal Type: Written Representation
Description: Single storey rear extension
Location: Haycroft  High Street Hurley Maidenhead SL6 5LT
Appellant: Mr & Mrs J Dunn c/o Agent: Mr Christian Leigh Leigh And Glennie Ltd 6 All Souls Road 

Ascot Berkshire SL5 9EA

Ward:
Parish: Maidenhead Unparished
Appeal Ref.: 18/60058/ENF Enforcement 

Ref.:
17/50246/ENF PIns Ref.: APP/T0355/C/18/

3195152
Date Received: 10 May 2018 Comments Due: 21 June 2018
Type: Enforcement Appeal Appeal Type: Written Representation
Description: Appeal against the Enforcement Notice:  Without planning permission, the erection of a two 

storey side and rear extension to include a rear dormer.
Location: 29 Holmanleaze Maidenhead SL6 8AW 
Appellant: Mrs Hansna Rukshana Nehar c/o Agent: Mr Neil Davis Davis Planning Ltd 19 Woodlands 

Avenue Winnersh  Wokingham Berkshire RG41 3HL

Ward:
Parish: Maidenhead Unparished
Appeal Ref.: 18/60059/REF Planning Ref.: 17/03320/FULL PIns Ref.: APP/T0355/D/18/

3198861
Date Received: 15 May 2018 Comments Due: Not Applicable
Type: Refusal Appeal Type: Householder
Description: Side dormer
Location: 2 Simpson Close Maidenhead SL6 8RZ
Appellant: Mr R Khan 2 Simpson Close Maidenhead SL6 8RZ

Ward:
Parish: White Waltham Parish
Appeal Ref.: 18/60060/REF Planning Ref.: 17/03732/FULL PIns Ref.: APP/T0355/D/18/

3199411
Date Received: 15 May 2018 Comments Due: Not Applicable
Type: Refusal Appeal Type: Householder
Description: Part single, part two storey rear extension, two storey side extension, single storey front and 

side extension, attached garage with room over with 3 no dormers, alterations to 
fenestration, and new widened vehicular access

Location: 24 Walgrove Gardens White Waltham Maidenhead SL6 3SL
Appellant: Mr Renato Iavagnilio c/o Agent: Mr Stuart Keen SKDdesign Ltd Unit 16 Woodlands 

Business Park Woodlands Park Avenue Maidenhead  SL6 3UA

Ward:
Parish: Maidenhead Unparished
Appeal Ref.: 18/60062/REF Planning Ref.: 17/02467/FULL PIns Ref.: APP/T0355/D/18/

3198183
Date Received: 15 May 2018 Comments Due: Not Applicable
Type: Refusal Appeal Type: Householder
Description: Alterations at front to access, parking and boundary treatment including new driveway, drop 

kerb, new wall and gate
Location: 192 Bath Road Maidenhead SL6 4LE
Appellant: Mr Steve Brown 5 Arundel Close Maidenhead Berkshire SL6 5JY

Ward:
Parish: Maidenhead Unparished
Appeal Ref.: 18/60064/REF Planning Ref.: 17/02220/FULL PIns Ref.: APP/T0355/W/18/

3197283
Date Received: 16 May 2018 Comments Due: 20 June 2018
Type: Refusal Appeal Type: Written Representation

52



Description: Construction of 2 x two-bedroom flats
Location: Land At 53 And 54 Brunel Road Maidenhead  
Appellant: Mr Jora Singh Dhillon c/o Agent: Mr Paul Zyda Zyda Law 44 Wellington Road Nantwich 

CW5 7BX

Ward:
Parish: Maidenhead Unparished
Appeal Ref.: 18/60065/REF Planning Ref.: 17/01107/FULL PIns Ref.: APP/T0355/W/17/

3191002
Date Received: 17 May 2018 Comments Due: 21 June 2018
Type: Refusal Appeal Type: Hearing
Description: Construction of a new community centre for use by the Hindu Society of Maidenhead and the 

wider community, to include associated parking, bin storage and cycle store
Location: RBWM Boulters Lock Car Park Lower Cookham Road Maidenhead SL6 8JT 
Appellant: Mr M Malhotra c/o Agent: Mr Paul Dickinson Paul Dickinson And Associates Highway 

House Lower Froyle Hants GU34 4NB

53



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
	3 MINUTES
	4 PLANNING APPLICATIONS (DECISION)
	all items

	5 ESSENTIAL MONITORING REPORTS (MONITORING)

